# FAMILY CURSES AND THE **BELIEVER'S** FREEDOM

ANTHONY ABBIN

# Cover Page

Title: Family Curses and the Believer's Freedom Author: Anthony Abbin

#### 📖 Title Page

Family Curses and the Believer's Freedom By Anthony Abbin

# Copyright

© 2025 Anthony Abbin. All rights reserved. No portion of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, or transmitted in any form, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording, or otherwise, without written permission from the author. Scripture quotations are from the Holy Bible, unless otherwise indicated.

Published by Kairos Hour Global. ISBN: [Pending]

# 🙏 Dedication

To every believer who has ever wondered why certain battles keep repeating in their family.

To the sons and daughters crying out for freedom and clarity.

To the bloodline breakers rising in this generation.

You are not cursed. You are called.

# 羔 Author's Note: Why This Book Matters Right Now

We are living in a generation that is spiritually hungry but dangerously uninformed. The rise of prophetic ministries has brought a fresh awareness of curses, altars, and ancestral bonds, but many are still stuck in fear, confusion, and counterfeit deliverance.

This book is not written to glorify curses, but to glorify Christ. It's not a manual of superstition, but a revelation of truth. It is for the believer who knows the cross is enough but still senses the residue of bloodline patterns. It is for those who want to walk in the fullness of their inheritance without spiritual hindrances.

We need truth that liberates, not just prayers that stimulate. The freedom Christ offers is total, legal, and lasting, but many are living beneath their covenant rights. This book will help you confront the invisible chains, break every agreement with darkness, and rise into generational blessing.

We are not helpless. We are heirs. And it's time to live like it.

# 📚 Table of Contents

- 1. Introduction
- 2. Chapter 1: What Is a Family Curse?
- 3. Chapter 2: Legal Grounds in the Bloodline
- 4. Chapter 3: Idols, Altars, and Ancestral Pacts
- 5. Chapter 4: How Curses Transfer Through Generations
- 6. Chapter 5: Christ's Finished Work and Your Authority
- 7. Chapter 6: Renounce, Rebuke, Replace
- 8. Conclusion: Freedom That Bears Fruit
- 9. Bonus: Deliverance Prayers & Declarations
- 10. About the Author
- 11. Call to Action

#### Introduction

Some wounds do not begin with us. They are inherited.

A man can be born into bondage he never chose, fight battles he never started, and live under shadows cast long before he took his first breath. The truth is, not all problems are personal. Some are generational.

We live in a time where psychology wants to treat everything as a mental issue, and secular culture insists everything is about trauma. While those are real factors, they are not the only layers. Scripture reveals another dimension: the spiritual lineage of a person can carry both blessing and bondage. What runs through your family line may explain what keeps running through your life.

The Bible does not shy away from this. God described Himself as the one "visiting the iniquity of the fathers upon the children unto the third and fourth generation" of those who hate Him (Exodus 20:5). That is not a curse from God, but a legal consequence of unrepented sin in a family line. When doors are opened, spirits enter. And when they are not cast out or legally dealt with, they remain.

Family curses are real. Not because God hates families, but because the enemy exploits every legal ground he can find. Many believers are experiencing repeated cycles: untimely deaths, addictions, barrenness, rage, poverty, marital dysfunction, or spiritual stagnation. And they are praying hard, fasting long, confessing the Word, but still feel like something invisible is resisting them.

This book exists to tell you the truth.

You are not crazy. You are not cursed by God. But you may be living under a generational curse that Christ already broke—but you have not yet enforced.

That is the key.

The Cross of Christ is the legal answer. But the believer must enforce that verdict. The blood of Jesus breaks the curse, but your agreement with that truth activates its power. Just like salvation, healing, and every covenant promise, it must be received, believed, and enforced.

In this book, we will:

- Define what a family curse is and what it is not
- Trace how legal grounds form in bloodlines
- Examine the roles of altars, idols, and ancestral covenants
- Show how these things are transferred through generations
- Unveil the full power of Christ's redemptive work
- Equip you with tools to renounce, rebuke, and replace demonic patterns

This is not a book about fear. It is about freedom.

This is not a journey back into your past to make you bitter. It is a revelation of what Christ redeemed you from, so you can walk in what He redeemed you for.

You were not born to repeat cycles. You were born to break them.

Let's begin.

# Chapter 1: What Is a Family Curse?

"Our fathers have sinned and are no more, and we bear their iniquities."

- Lamentations 5:7

A family curse is not a superstition. It is not an unlucky streak. It is not just bad behavior passed down like a family recipe. A family curse is a spiritual consequence that legally operates through a bloodline because of sin, idolatry, or occult involvement in the family's past. It is a demonic cycle that finds its right to remain through patterns, covenants, and unrepented agreements.

Many believers are confused because they think, "Jesus already died for me. So why is this still happening?" That's a good question. The answer is found in understanding the difference between **provision** and **possession**. Christ has provided victory, but you must take possession of it.

Think of Israel in the Old Testament. God told them the Promised Land was theirs. But they still had to fight giants, tear down altars, and evict squatters. The land was theirs legally, but not experientially, until they enforced it. The same is true with family curses. Christ has broken every curse, but if there are unbroken agreements, untouched altars, or patterns that have not been confronted, they may continue illegally until you evict them with truth.

A family curse usually shows up in one or more of the following ways:

- Repeating patterns of failure or limitation in a family line
- Specific sicknesses that plague generation after generation
- Unexplainable resistance in areas of progress
- Mental, emotional, or spiritual torment that seems inherited
- Barrenness, miscarriages, or marital destruction without medical cause
- Sudden deaths, especially at the same age range across generations
- Addictions and destructive behaviors that run like blood

None of this is coincidence. None of it is God punishing you. It is the enemy using unhealed ground, unrepented sin, or open doors to build a legal case against your destiny.

Remember what Proverbs 26:2 says, *"A curse without cause shall not alight."* That means curses don't just appear. They land on legal grounds. They find a reason to stay. But the good news is this: every legal ground can be overturned by the blood of Jesus when applied in truth.

Many families never examine their foundations. They inherit houses, land, names, and stories, but they never investigate the spiritual history. What altars did their ancestors serve? What oaths were made? What blood was spilled? What idols were revered? These things matter. Not because we want to live in the past, but because unrepented history repeats itself.

In Scripture, we see examples:

- Abraham lied. Isaac repeated it. Jacob mastered it.
- David committed adultery and murder. His children struggled with lust, incest, and rebellion.
- Jeroboam built idolatrous altars. His entire lineage was cut off.

The Bible is not hiding this. It is showing us that family patterns must be addressed spiritually.

You don't fight a spiritual curse with effort, education, or escape. You confront it with revelation, repentance, and resistance. You must stand as a representative of your bloodline, bring it under the Lordship of Jesus, and cut off everything that legally connects your name to darkness.

If you don't break it, it continues.

If you don't confront it, it conquers.

If you don't renounce it, it will recruit the next generation.

But if you do rise up, truth will meet you. And the yoke will break.

In the next chapter, we will deal with **legal grounds**. Because curses don't function on emotions. They function on laws.

And every law that was written against you can be blotted out.

# Chapter 2: Legal Grounds in the Bloodline

"Having wiped out the handwriting of requirements that was against us, which was contrary to us. And He has taken it out of the way, having nailed it to the cross." - Colossians 2:14

The demonic realm is not chaotic. It is legalistic.

Spirits don't just attack because they feel like it. They look for permission. They look for rights. They look for agreements, words, pacts, covenants, oaths, actions, and patterns that give them a foothold. And when they find one, they exploit it. That's what we mean by **legal ground**.

A legal ground is any spiritual authorization that allows a demonic power to operate in a person's life or bloodline. Just like in a courtroom, the devil acts as an accuser. He presents evidence. He uses laws. He argues from records. If there is unrepented sin, unbroken covenants, or ancestral oaths that no one has renounced, the enemy claims the right to continue oppressing that lineage.

That's why salvation alone doesn't always cancel demonic oppression. Salvation secures your soul, but deliverance deals with the claims made against your life. Jesus paid for your freedom, but if the accusations are still standing, the courtroom of heaven requires your response.

Let's walk through some common legal grounds that allow curses to continue:

#### 1. Idolatry and False Worship

When ancestors bowed to idols, spirits came. Whether it was ancestral gods, witch doctors, occult shrines, Freemasonry, or spiritualist practices, these things created altars. Altars are places of exchange and agreement. Every altar speaks. Until it is silenced by a higher altar, the Cross, it continues to demand.

#### 2. Bloodshed and Injustice

Abel's blood cried out from the ground. Blood has a voice. When families are involved in murder, ritual killings, abortions, or unjust bloodshed, the land is defiled. Demons use that defilement to claim rights to torment and attack.

# 3. Sexual Sin and Immorality

Fornication, incest, rape, adultery, and perversion do not just stain souls. They open doors. When these sins are covered up or generational, they establish strongholds of lust, rejection, confusion, and shame in a family line.

# 4. Covenants and Oaths

What was spoken matters. What your great-grandfather vowed in a secret society matters. What your family pledged to receive power, protection, or wealth can still be in effect. Words create worlds. And oaths are spiritual contracts.

#### 5. Unforgiveness and Bitterness

Jesus said the unforgiving heart will be handed over to tormentors. Some family lines are bound by long histories of feuds, betrayal, and bitterness that have never been healed. That pain becomes a portal.

#### 6. Cursed Objects and Inherited Altars

Some families pass down idols, rings, cloths, charms, or cultural artifacts that carry spiritual weight. Even unknowingly, these objects give demons continued access until they are removed and renounced.

#### 7. Agreement by Ignorance

What you don't confront, you permit. Ignorance is not innocence in spiritual matters. Many believers are suffering not because of what they did, but because of what no one before them ever addressed.

Legal ground gives demons legal voice. And until the legalities are broken, the bondage continues. That's why true deliverance is not just about shouting or shaking. It is about **repenting**, **renouncing**, **and replacing** the lies and legal grounds with the truth and authority of Jesus.

Remember Colossians 2:14. Jesus blotted out every handwritten ordinance against us. But that truth must be activated. You must present the blood of Jesus as your legal defense. You must revoke the enemy's claim. You must silence the altars with a higher voice.

In the next chapter, we will talk about those **altars**. What they are, how they work, and how ancestral pacts are enforced through them. Because demons don't just live in people. They live in systems. And altars are the system behind many curses.

Let's expose them.

#### Chapter 3: Idols, Altars, and Ancestral Pacts

"They sacrificed to demons, not to God, to gods they did not know, to new gods, new arrivals that your fathers did not fear."

- Deuteronomy 32:17

If you want to understand how darkness gains power in families, you must understand altars.

Altars are not just physical structures. They are spiritual systems of exchange, worship, and agreement. Every altar connects a spirit and a people. It is where covenants are made, reinforced, and remembered. The question is never whether your family had an altar. The question is, who or what was it raised to?

In the Bible, altars were places where people met with God. Abraham built altars to worship the Lord. So did Isaac, Jacob, and others. But the enemy is a copycat. Just as God uses altars to bless, the devil uses altars to bind.

When a family line builds altars to idols, demons are invited. The rituals may be long forgotten, but the altar still speaks. The spirit behind that altar still lays claim. That is how ancestral pacts begin.

An ancestral pact is a spiritual agreement made by forefathers, often in pursuit of protection, wealth, fertility, or power. These agreements were made with spiritual entities, sometimes knowingly, sometimes through traditional practices, and those spirits now claim legal ownership over that bloodline.

Let me show you how this works:

#### 1. The Altars Are Raised

A man in a village goes to a shrine. He wants wealth or children or victory. The priest tells him to make a sacrifice, perform a ritual, or speak a vow. An altar is raised, and in that moment, a covenant is made. A spirit is invoked. A transaction happens.

#### 2. The Pact Becomes Generational

That man dies. But the altar doesn't. The spirit doesn't. The agreement doesn't. It passes down through blood. The children, whether they like it or not, are now bound to an agreement they never made but inherited. The demon now has legal access to monitor, influence, or torment them.

# 3. The Symptoms Multiply

Years later, the family begins to experience cycles: madness, premature death, failure at the edge of breakthrough, poverty, infertility, or chronic illness. Prayers are said. Hands are laid. But the altar still speaks. The demon is still enforcing the pact.

This is why simply praying "God bless me" is not enough. If there is a voice from the past speaking against your present, you must confront it. If there is an altar speaking curses, you must answer with a higher altar. The cross is that altar. The blood of Jesus is that answer.

The tragedy is that many believers have renounced sin but never renounced the systems built before they were born. Many are saved but still bound because the family altars were never addressed.

Let's be clear:

- You cannot cast out a demon you still partner with.
- You cannot silence an altar you still respect.
- You cannot walk in freedom if a family agreement still binds you.

So how do we deal with these altars and pacts?

We must:

- Identify the altar (what it was raised for and what fruit it has produced)
- **Repent** for the sins of the fathers (Nehemiah did it. Daniel did it. You can too.)
- Renounce the covenant (break agreement with its terms)
- **Destroy** the legal right (through the blood of Jesus)
- Replace it with a new covenant, rooted in Christ alone

In Judges 6, God told Gideon to tear down his father's altar to Baal before he could bring deliverance to Israel. You cannot build God's future on demonic foundations. The old altar must fall.

In the next chapter, we will look at how these pacts and altars transfer across generations. Because demons are territorial and generational. And they will not leave until someone takes a stand.

You are that someone.

# Chapter 4: How Curses Transfer Through Generations

"The Lord is long-suffering and abundant in mercy, forgiving iniquity and transgression; but He by no means clears the guilty, visiting the iniquity of the fathers on the children to the third and fourth generation."

- Numbers 14:18

Generational curses do not float. They travel.

They move through bloodlines, names, legal agreements, and inherited patterns. They are not random. They are not based on luck. They are transferred through specific spiritual mechanisms that continue to operate until they are interrupted by truth.

To understand how curses move through generations, we must look at how God designed generational blessing to work. In Deuteronomy 7:9, God says He shows mercy and keeps covenant for a thousand generations to those who love Him. That means blessings can be inherited. So can spiritual covering, favor, and legacy.

But when a family walks in rebellion, idolatry, or lawlessness, the opposite can also be inherited. When darkness is not addressed, it embeds itself into the rhythm of a family line. It becomes familiar. It disguises itself as personality or culture. But underneath, it is demonic.

Here are the most common ways curses are transferred through generations:

# 1. Through Blood

The bloodline is a spiritual highway. In the same way biological traits are passed down, so are spiritual traits. Curses move through the blood unless interrupted by covenant with Christ. That is why redemption is not just a spiritual experience. It is a blood covenant. Jesus shed blood to redeem your bloodline.

#### 2. Through Names

Names carry authority and inheritance. In biblical culture, a name was a prophetic declaration over a person's destiny. Some families unknowingly name children after ancestors who were involved in idolatry or witchcraft. That name becomes a spiritual identifier, linking the child to ancient covenants.

#### 3. Through Family Altars and Traditions

Some rituals are passed down as culture, but they are actually worship to other gods. Libations, funeral rites, naming ceremonies, and seasonal sacrifices may appear harmless, but many are rooted in ancient pacts. These acts re-activate dormant curses with every generation.

# 4. Through Unrepented Sin

When sin is repeated and never confronted, it becomes a generational stronghold. The enemy sees it as an open door. Sexual immorality, violence, hatred, bitterness, and greed, when consistent across generations, become part of the family atmosphere. Children grow into it. Demons exploit it.

#### 5. Through Silence and Ignorance

What is not exposed cannot be expelled. Many families avoid the truth. They hide the stories. They pretend the past doesn't matter. But silence is not deliverance. Ignorance of the curse is not protection from it. What you refuse to confront will find a way to continue.

Now here's the critical truth: curses may transfer by default, but blessing transfers by decision.

You must break the flow. You must rise as the interruption. You must choose to be the first in your family to confront the invisible roots of visible problems. You may not have built the altar, but you have the authority to tear it down.

In Ezekiel 18, God makes it clear that a righteous person can break the pattern. He is not bound by the father's sin. He can live clean and break the curse. That same principle applies to you.

You are not a prisoner of your bloodline. You are a covenant child of God. You are not bound to repeat what your father did. You are not destined to suffer what your mother suffered. You are anointed to break the cycle.

In the next chapter, we will walk into your inheritance. Christ did not just cancel the curse. He gave you authority. And when you understand how to use that authority, the flow of bondage stops with you.

The curse stops here.

# Chapter 5: Christ's Finished Work and Your Authority

"Christ has redeemed us from the curse of the law, having become a curse for us—for it is written, 'Cursed is everyone who hangs on a tree'..."

- Galatians 3:13

The greatest lie the devil ever told the Church is that we must fight for what Christ already won.

The truth is this: you are not trying to win the battle against curses. You are enforcing a victory that has already been secured. The cross is not a symbol. It is a verdict. And that verdict is final.

When Jesus died and rose again, He did not just forgive your sins. He canceled every legal charge, broke every generational curse, and disarmed every spiritual power that once held authority over your bloodline. You are not just saved. You are delivered. You are not just forgiven. You are empowered.

So why do many believers still struggle?

Because they do not understand the difference between **inheritance** and **activation**.

A deed to a house means nothing if you do not move in. A bank account with your name on it means nothing if you never make a withdrawal. Christ has provided it all. But your agreement and activation release it into your life. Let's look at what Christ's finished work accomplished for you:

#### 1. He Became the Curse

Jesus did not just remove the curse. He became it. He took the full weight of every generational sin, every inherited bondage, and every demonic claim. He absorbed it. And when He died, the curse died with Him.

#### 2. He Shed Blood for Your Bloodline

The curse travels through blood. So Jesus bled to redeem your bloodline. At every point He bled, His head, hands, feet, back, and side, He was reversing the curse. His blood is not just for your sin. It is for your lineage. Your history. Your family tree.

#### 3. He Gave You His Name

The name of Jesus is not a magic word. It is a legal authority. When you speak His name, you are not begging. You are summoning the highest court of heaven. You are standing in His identity and commanding the enemy to bow.

#### 4. He Disarmed Principalities

Colossians 2:15 says He stripped powers and principalities of their weapons. That means demons may still talk, tempt, or try—but they have no authority unless you give it to them.

# 5. He Seated You With Him

You are not on the battlefield trying to climb into victory. You are seated with Christ in heavenly places. Your perspective must shift. You are not beneath the curse. You are above it. You are not fighting to break through. You are enforcing what has already been broken.

This is your authority:

- To declare the Word
- To plead the blood
- To renounce every lie
- To cast out every spirit
- To shut down every altar
- To rewrite the story of your family

Your voice matters. Your words are weapons. Your alignment with truth is the greatest act of spiritual warfare.

But authority only works where there is agreement. If you agree with fear, the curse will speak. If you agree with shame, the past will repeat. But if you agree with the Word, the curse will break. The blood will speak. And your future will shift.

In the next chapter, we will walk through how to renounce, rebuke, and replace. Because the cross is not just to look at. It is to apply. And when you apply the blood with revelation, freedom follows. This is your moment to rise in authority.

The curse is broken.

Now speak like it.

# Chapter 6: Renounce, Rebuke, Replace

"Therefore submit to God. Resist the devil and he will flee from you."

- James 4:7

Spiritual warfare is not just about resisting darkness. It is about replacing it with truth.

Many people try to cast out demons but never close the door. They break agreements but never replace the void with covenant. They tear down altars but never build new ones. That is why freedom often feels temporary, because the house was swept clean but left empty.

If you truly want to walk in lasting freedom from family curses, you must take three prophetic actions: **Renounce**, **Rebuke**, and **Replace**.

Let's break this down:

# 1. Renounce

To renounce means to disown, reject, and cancel agreement. It is not just saying "I'm sorry." It is a spiritual divorce from every contract, covenant, altar, and alliance that once existed in your bloodline. You renounce:

- Every known and unknown covenant your ancestors made
- Every name, title, or spiritual identity that links you to evil
- Every lie you believed about yourself and your family

Renouncing is vocal. It is legal. It is deliberate.

*"I renounce every blood covenant made by my forefathers."* 

"I reject every altar that was raised to idols in my family line."

"I cancel every curse and spiritual agreement that does not align with the finished work of Christ."

Renounce it with fire. Do not whisper. Heaven must hear it. Hell must fear it.

# 2. Rebuke

Once you have renounced, you must rebuke. To rebuke means to confront, silence, and command with authority. Jesus rebuked storms, demons, sickness, and lies. You carry that same authority.

Rebuke every spirit that has been riding the curse:

- The spirit of poverty
- The spirit of infirmity
- The spirit of fear, lust, perversion, stagnation, or confusion

Speak to it.

"You foul spirit operating through this curse, I command you in the name of Jesus, leave my life, leave my family, and never return."

Rebuke with Scripture. Rebuke with faith. Rebuke with the name of Jesus. Your voice carries the force of heaven when aligned with truth.

#### 3. Replace

Deliverance is not complete until truth replaces the lie.

If a curse said, "You will always be poor," replace it with, *"My God shall supply all my needs according to His riches in glory."* If a curse said, "Your marriage will fail," replace it with, *"What God has joined together, let no man put asunder."* If a curse said, "Your children will suffer," replace it with, *"I and the children the Lord has given me are for signs and wonders."* 

You must fill your mind, your home, your atmosphere with declarations of truth. Write them. Speak them. Pray them. Praise them. Let your new agreement be louder than the old covenant.

When Jesus was tempted, He didn't explain. He responded with, *"It is written."* That is your sword.

Renounce the lie.

Rebuke the spirit.

Replace it with truth.

This is how freedom takes root.

In the next and final chapter, we will bring this together. Freedom is not just the absence of curses. It is the fullness of life in Christ. The curse may run in the family, but so can blessing. And it starts with you.

It starts now.

# Conclusion: Freedom That Bears Fruit

"If the Son makes you free, you shall be free indeed."

- John 8:36

Freedom is not a feeling. It is a fact.

And the kind of freedom Jesus gives is not fragile. It is not temporary. It is not emotional. It is legal, spiritual, eternal, and practical. When Jesus sets you free, it is not partial. It is not surface level. It is total.

But real freedom always bears fruit.

When the curse is broken, the evidence is not just in what you say. It is in what you live. The pattern stops. The affliction lifts. The fear is silenced. The atmosphere of your life shifts. You begin to walk in what your bloodline never could.

This is how you know freedom has taken root:

- You no longer fear the future.
- You are no longer tormented by the past.
- Your mind is stable. Your heart is steady.
- Cycles of failure are replaced with patterns of favor.
- The things that bound your parents no longer have access to you.
- You begin to make decisions from truth, not trauma.
- You feel heaven's peace resting over your life and home.

You were not saved to survive your bloodline. You were saved to redeem it.

The same blood that saved your soul can cleanse your history. You are not here to repeat generational pain. You are here to establish generational blessing. The old doors are closed. The old altars are silent. The voice of the blood of Jesus is now louder than the voice of any curse.

So what now?

- Walk in truth daily.
- Watch over your atmosphere.
- Live a life of repentance and humility.
- Guard your words and agreements.
- Stay submitted to the Holy Spirit.
- Pass this freedom to the next generation.

You are the Moses of your family. You are the breaker. The one who refused to settle. The one who came into the truth and chose to live free.

Let no voice, dream, fear, feeling, or accusation convince you otherwise.

The curse is broken. The fruit will speak.

Your family will know freedom because you believed God.

And generations will rise and call you blessed.

Let this be your legacy.

Let freedom bear fruit.

#### Bonus Section: Deliverance Prayers and Declarations

*"For the weapons of our warfare are not carnal but mighty in God for pulling down strongholds."* 

- 2 Corinthians 10:4

These prayers and declarations are not rituals. They are weapons. Use them with faith, boldness, and a clean heart. Speak them aloud. Let your voice agree with the Word of God. Let heaven hear. Let hell tremble.

Step 1: Repentance

Heavenly Father, I come before You in the name of Jesus. I confess the sins of my fathers and my own sins. I ask for mercy. I turn away from every iniquity, every idol, and every agreement made with darkness, known or unknown. Cleanse me by the blood of Jesus. Make me a vessel of honor in my family line.

#### Step 2: Renunciation

I renounce every generational curse operating in my bloodline.

I renounce every altar raised to idols in my ancestry.

I renounce every covenant made with spirits of darkness.

I renounce every secret society, witchcraft, divination, or occult involvement in my lineage.

I cancel every agreement made with death, sickness, poverty, failure, and shame.

# Step 3: Breaking Legal Grounds

By the blood of Jesus, I blot out every legal case standing against me.

I silence the voice of every ancestral altar.

I break the power of every ritual, oath, or token connecting me to past covenants.

Let the fire of the Holy Spirit consume every evil foundation in my bloodline.

# Step 4: Rebuke

I rebuke every spirit behind generational bondage.

Spirit of fear, go now.

Spirit of poverty, I command you to leave.

Spirit of infirmity, your power is broken.

Every monitoring spirit, every marine spirit, every spirit of delay, I bind you and cast you out in the name of Jesus.

# Step 5: Replacement with Blessing

I receive the blessing of Abraham through Christ.

I receive generational favor, open doors, and divine protection.

I declare that I am a new creation.

My children are blessed. My household is covered. My name is redeemed.

# Declarations for Daily Freedom

- 1. The blood of Jesus speaks louder than any curse.
- 2. I walk in the blessing of the Lord that makes rich and adds no sorrow.
- 3. No weapon formed against me shall prosper.
- 4. I am the righteousness of God in Christ.
- 5. My family is a family of fire and glory.
- 6. Old cycles are broken. New legacies begin with me.
- 7. Every curse stops with me. Every blessing flows through me.

#### **Final Confession**

I am free. I am whole. I am covered. I am not cursed. I am chosen. Jesus is Lord over my bloodline. The curse is broken. The blessing has begun. Amen.

#### About the Author

Anthony Abbin is a Christian author and speaker with a passion for helping people walk in truth and freedom. He writes to expose darkness, equip believers, and glorify Jesus.

He is the author of the *Spiritual Warfare Series*, a collection of short books designed to bring clarity, healing, and breakthrough.

Connect with him:

- Email: anthonyabbin@gmail.com
- YouTube: @anthonyabbin and Kairos Hour Global
- Instagram, Facebook, TikTok: @anthonyabbin

# Call to Action

If this book blessed you, share it.

Someone in your family or circle may be waiting for this truth. Don't keep it to yourself. Use it to teach. Use it to pray. Use it to break chains.

Leave a review. It helps others find freedom too.

And stay connected. More books in this *Spiritual Warfare Series* are on the way.

Walk in truth. Live in freedom. Keep the fire burning.

- Anthony Abbin

# Are you fighting battles that started before you were born?

Are you fighting battles that started before you were born? This book is your invitation to break free. \*Family Curses and the Believer's Freedom\* is a bold, Spirit-filled guide to understanding the unseen roots of generational bondageand how to overcome them through Christ. With piercing clarity and biblical depth, Anthony Abbin exposes how curses form, how they pass through bloodlines, and how Jesus provides lasting deliverance. This is not a book of fear. It is a manual of freedom. Inside you'll discover: \* What a family curse really is \* How legal grounds are formed in bloodlines \* The role of idols, altars, and ancestral covenants \* How curses transfer from one generation to another \* What Christ has already done—and how to walk in it \* Practical prayers and declarations to renounce, rebuke, and replace every lie You are not cursed. You are called. And it's time to live like it. The curse stops here.